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SUMMARY DESCRIPTION % wv;"r' Lk . oL
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Fo{t Nonsense*is a l9th century earthen fortification consisting of two
arcs of embankments and ditches separated by a gorge or gate on the west side
and by’ a “berm on’ the east-southeast;' It is 64.9 meters in circumference
(measured on the crests of the embankments) The fort is in excellent condition.
Its locaticn 18° a hilltop which ‘has” remained undisturbed by the surrounding
2 napolis Naval Ship Research and Development Center.

] N et
B SN - «51-"; a"".,?, -

< --Q)

o‘/\

STt ST S -1-'

GcNERAL DESCRIPTION
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Fort Nonsense is situated on” a "éhale—back" hilltop above the north
bank of the Seyernﬂgiver near. its confluence with the Chesapeake Bay. It is
within the boundaries of . the Annapolis Laboratory, part of the Navy's David
Taylorxr Naval Ship Research and Development Center. Most of the laboratory, at
the base of. the hilY, is built on tidal fill.. The hilltop is composed of
Sassafras and’ Monmouth fine~ sandy “loams which support deciduous trees such
as apple, oak sycamore, and wild black cherry, as well as cedar and holly.
The maximum natural elevation is about 83 feet above sea level. Although no
buildings impinge on the site, an encased underground 13,800-volt cable runs
from northeast of the site, past its southeast edge and on to the southwest.

" The nearest building is a farmhouse, ‘converted into officers' quarters,

which lies about 60 meters south of the fort. Church Road runs within 20.
meters west of the site.“"~'~ L -

The fortification consists of two arcs of embankments which are constructed
entirely of earth.. A 3. 7—meter wide gate separates the arcs on the west side
and an 11, S—meter wide berm’ separates them on the east-southeast. The
circumference of ‘the fort, measured on the crests of the embankments from one -
side of the gate clockwise to the other side is 64.9 meters. The circumference
of the ditch was measured at its 1owest point and at the outer edge. These
measurements are 81.3 meters and 99.6 meters respectively. The ends of the
two embankments, on either side of the berm, are 12.2 meters apart. Immediately
north of the southern arc is a. circular borrow area measuring 8.1 by meters
north to south” by 7.1 meters east to west.. Along the northern wall there are
three conspicuous depressions, possible embrasures, spaced 10, 13.9 and 18.8
meters from the north side «of the gate.A Thk overall maximum dimensions of the
fort are.“‘34 metera nortﬁ%to south and 30 meters east to west. The flat
interior measures 16" by 14 nmters and 47 ‘meters in corcumference. The total
area 1s 0. 25 hectare.v Haximum elevation i8 25.62 meters a.s.l. and the

Pty

minimum is 23 3_meters a s 1,7 (84-76 feet)
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued) ni
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The embankment was constructed by inverting the natural stratigraphy
from the borrow pit and ditches.' Thue, the yellow and pale brown sandy loams
of the B horizon became mixed with “the underlying clay in the embankment fill
and were capped by the orange, gravelly, clayey loam of the C horizon.

‘.4 ,.' !S")* ‘_',4 x R ;.,A ¢“l ‘,.

. Qr N
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The fort was,_ investigated by excavating portions of two perpendicular
trenches,'one meter wide, ‘running from a datum in the center of the interior
through the interior, borrow pit (trench 1), walls and ditches. A magnetometer
survey of the fort was attempted, employing a five-meter grid system. The
survey was not particularly useful but the grid was used subsequently for
placing shovel tests. An additional ten-meter grid was established for
testing the crest of the hill beyond the ditch.

. "Q. 3 ;-?; "*"‘1" :,.‘.,. :

The number of ‘artifacts recovered were few. The shovel tests extracted
wire and nails of recent vintage. The trenches yielded a variety of items:
an 1824 Capped Bust type dime, a 1900 Colt .38 cartridge casing, nails, late
19th century bottle and window glass and a 19th century pipestem.

Conclusions drawn from the excavation data strongly suggest that the
southern arc was constructed first, in the early 19th century. The northern
arc may have been built at the same time but was apparently reconstructed
later in the century:by moving the ditch farther out and heightening and
steepening the wall.fi S

Only two documents exist to "corroborate these conclusions. Both are
maps or sketches. One is an 1844 map of the Annapolis harbor and the other
is an 1846 sketch of nearby Fort Madison, with an accompanying report noting
that Fort Nonsense, effectively deters attack from the rear on nearby Fort
Madison, They. demonstrate the existence of "0ld Fort Nomsense' prior to

1844. Beyond that, the documents have been mute on the subject of Fort
Nonsense. X SR , .
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" The significance of Fort'Nonsense lies in 1ts possible relation to
important events, gpriterion A), 1.e. the Revolutionary War, the War of 1812
and the Civil War, in its distinctive characteristics (Criterion C) because
it is a roughly circular and entirely earthen redoubt; and in its potential
for yielding information (Criterion D) since it is the last vestige of
Annapolis Harbor fortifications.‘~.-~n-—-

< .

HISTORY AND SUPPORT} ;;g;.

-

The property on which Fort Nonsense was constructed was originally
patented to Henry Woolchurch and Alice Durand in the 1660's. Among the
subsequent ten owners through the '18th and 19th centuries were David Kerr
who patented "Kerr's Prospect” in 1800 and James Hunter who leased some of
the property to the Navy after 1857, "About that time the Naval Academy
used. the land for a rifle range and an experimental station, a function
that continues to the present. A land development company tried unsucess-
fully to establish a housing tract in the vicinity of the fort in the 1930's,
but planned to set aside the area containing the fort. The laboratory began
operation in 1904, As its functions increased, its area expanded and it was
continually modernized through the two World Wars. The present Master Plan
Update (1981) is the ultimate reason for the recent archeological work,
culminating in this nomination.

-  Fort Nonsense appears to have ‘been part of the plan of defenses for
the Annapolis Harbor. Other fortifications include Fort Madison, Fort
Severn, a fort on Horn's Point and a possible fort on Bieman's Point. 1In
1776 the Convention of Maryland appropriated 5900 1bs. to fortify Annapolis.
In’ the following year a comnittee was appointed to study the harbor and it :
requested and received more funds.' Forts were built at Horn's Point,

. B N O ._.'_ ce | e PR
"—'1'—\ C— O -
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) See Continuation’lshheet No:i T
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued) .. :

tﬂééveih;hheiexthe Naval Academy now stands), Bieman's
Hi11, plus breastworks elsewhere. The fort on Bieman's point was probably
on "Kerr's Prospect.". Congress appropriated funds in 1794 to fortify 20 East
Coast harbors but Annapolis was deleted from the 1798 1list. Yet $268.50 had
been sent toiAhnapolis"in 1795; its purpose is inknown. 1In 1808, Congress
reappropriated seacoast defense monies and Forts Madison and Severn and the
fort on Born's Point were begun. Additions, modifications, plans and requests
for funds for these forts continued through 1862. By 1811, the deficiencies
of Fort Madison were evident and its commander had his hands full with
disorderly troops and unsupportive townsfolk. A review of costal defenses

by the newly created War Department's Board of Engineers in 1816 resulted in
a blas toward Fort Severn in terms of attention and funds. It remained the
only garrisoned fort in Annapolis between 1821 and 1830. Fort Nonsense first

“appears in 1844 on & map of the harbor prepared by the Navy's U. S. Coast

Survey (U.S Coast and Geodetic Survey, now National Ocean Survey). The map
also indicates Fort Madison and '"0ld Fort Bieman." An 1846 Harbor and Roads
map, probably taken from the 1844 map shows Fort Nonsense and an 1846 sketch
of Fort Madison and an accompanying report indicate the location of Fort
Nonsense., Interest in Fort Madison revived after 1845 when Fort Severn was
incorporated into the new U.S. Naval Academy. Repairs were underway by 1853
and continued until 1856. More repairs were made in 1858 and appropriations
were still being requested in 1862. During the Civil War, General Butler
stationed Union'itroops in Annapolis but local sentiment forced the placement
of the camps outside the town limits. Confederate General Early had placed
entrenchments along Spa Creek. Following the war, Madison's garrison was
removed by 1867 and in 1873 the Academy leased the surrounding land. The
subsequent history of Fort Madison is unknown but examination of air photos
taken during construction of the Naval Air Station during World War II reveals

no trdce of the fort and it is presumed to be completely destroyed. Eventually

the fort on Horn's Point was lost to development and Fort Severn was torn
down 1n .1900." . Fort Nonsense remains intact.

Fort Nonsense may be one of the "other breastworks" constructed in 1777.
It may be ancillary to Fort Madison; a redoubt, battery or lookout placed on
the highest"véqtagg_in the area, The fort certainly existed before 1844.
Excavation reveals a probable period of rebuilding, either post-1845 when
attention shifted from Fort Severn to Fort Madison or during the Civil War
when Butlef's troops were stationed in Annapolis.
See Continuation Sheet No, 3
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued) ‘ 2
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Tbe size, shape and manner of construction of Fort Nonsense make it
interesting because it does not’ quite conform to the pattern of various types
of fortifications.' Earthqn fortifications were recognized as being temporary
and impermanent as'early as the 16th ‘century -although-the use of various types
of earth’ and of logs and brush waa suggested by French and English engineers
to overcome’ somerof the problems associated with use of earth. Fort Nonsense
has survived due’to the nature of the subsoil which provided a gravelly and
clayey "cap" for the walls which has withstood weathering. Despite the
claims that some early forts in the United States were crude and poorly
engineered,’ Americans were not ignorant of French and English treatises on
the subject. Among the lessons learned in the French and Indian War was the
vulnerability of a fort from attach from a higher elevation. Many English
forts built after the war had redoubts built in positions overlooking passes
‘and other key positions to strengthen the forts' defensive postures. Redoubts
are small, independent works, not always defensible, that can function in a
variety of véys.< At Crown Point and Niagra, in New York, redoubts were
masonry and built to follow natural contours, and square, respectively.
Redoubts built "after the Revolution at Fort Putman in New York were irregularly
shaped, built of logq and earth, and finished with masonry. Several redoubts
constructed of earth were excavated at.Yorktown Battlefield. These were
expedient and intended to_be temporary., Certain-features of -Fort Nonsense do
not correspond well to the features described above, By definition a redoubt
is supposed to be enclosed Fort Nonsense is not entirely enclosed; it is
two arcs separated by openings. Its shape is roughly circular rather than
square or polygonal but Fort Wood near Fort McHenry in Baltimore was
circular. However, it was masonry. While Fort Nonsense does not entirely
fit the pattern of redoubts, it 18 clearly not a battery and may have served
some other military function. It 1s too far back and above the Severn River
and the -Chesa eake Bay for artillery of the period from the late 18th to early
19th centuries to be effective. Some redoubts are called "forts" and "for"
often refers,’ in general terms, to any small, independent, defensive forti-
fication or position. As’ such Fort Nonsense may have been a lookout-or
signal station or a position intended to cover the rear of Fort Madison.

- L R .-_;;:_fﬂ .‘_i’ '_‘,

Finally, there is tbe fort 8 integtity and}potential to yield data.

It i8 in excellent” condition, well protected from erosion and vandalism.
Recent excavations have not entirely answered the questions of its age and

function. Expanded’ excavations in and around the fort may clarify some of
, the ambiguities that testing exposed..
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Fort Nonsense Boundary Description and Justification

As illustrated on the enclosed map, the boundaries for Fort Nonsense are
defined on the east by Kinkaid Road and on the west by Church Road. The
junction of Kinkaid and Church Roads forms the northern boundary. The
roadways form a clear man-made boundary and serve to delimit the undistrubed
area immediately surrounding the earthwork. The southern boundary is defined
by a line running roughly east-west at the north wall of building "Quarters B."
This area includes the largely undisturbed open area to the south of the
earthwork (Fort Nonsense). This area was subjected to low-level archeological
testing with inconclusive results. The undisturbed areas surrounding Fort
Nonsense have either received minimal or no archeological testing. Archeo-
logical features such as encampments may be present in the areas around the
earthwork itself. Future more intensive archeological investigations could
alter the currently defined N.R. boundaries.

ACREAGE: less than one acre
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